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Memo 

To  Board of Education  
   

From 

 

 Kyla Johnson-Trammell, Superintendent  

Preston Thomas, Chief Systems & Services Officer 

Kenya Chatman, Executive Director of Facilities 
   

Board Meeting Date  June 25, 2025 
   

Subject  Architect Services Master Agreement for Various School Projects– DSK Architects - 

Projects with Construction Budget Under Ten Million Dollars - Division of Facilities 

Planning and Management  
   

Action Requested   Approval by the Board of Education of an Architect Services Master Agreement for 

Various School Projects by and between the District and DSK Architects, Oakland, 

CA, for the latter to provide Architectural Services for the District’s projects with a 

construction budget under ten million dollars ($10,000.00) at various school sites. 

Future projects assigned to DSK Architects under the agreement will be executed with 

amendments, each specific to a project scope, in the not-to-exceed amount of $0 at 

this time, with work scheduled to commence on June 26, 2025, and scheduled to end 

on June 30, 2028, pursuant to the Agreement.     
   

Discussion  Consultant was selected (a) based on demonstrated competence and professional 

qualifications (Government Code §4526), and (b) using a fair, competitive RFP 

selection process (Government Code §§4529.10 et seq.) 
   

LBP (Local Business 

Participation Percentage) 

 50% 

   

Recommendation  Approval by the Board of Education of an Architect Services Master Agreement for 

Various School Projects by and between the District and DSK Architects, Oakland, 

CA, for the latter to provide Architectural Services for the District’s projects with a 

construction budget under ten million dollars ($10,000.00) at various school sites. 

Future projects assigned to DSK Architects under the agreement will be executed with 

amendments, each specific to a project scope, in the not-to-exceed amount of $0 at 

this time, with work scheduled to commence on June 26, 2025, and scheduled to end 

on June 30, 2028, pursuant to the Agreement.     

   

Fiscal Impact  Fund 21 – Building Fund Measure Y 

   

Attachments  • Justification Form 

• Agreement, including Exhibits 

• Certificate of Insurance 

• Routing Form 

 

Board Office Use: Legislative File Info. 

File ID Number 25-1442 

Introduction Date 05-25-2025 

Enactment Number  

Enactment Date  



CONTRACT JUSTIFICATION FORM 

This Form Shall Be Submitted to the Board Office With Every 

Agenda Contract. 

Legislative File ID No. 25-1442 

Department; Division of Facilities Planning and Management 

Vendor Name: DSK Architects LLP 

Project Name: Projects with Construction Budget Under Ten Million Dollars 

Various School Sites 

Project No.: 25040 

Contract Term: Intended Start: 06-26-2025 Intended End: 06-30-2028 

Total Cost Over Contract Term: $0.00 

Approved by: Preston Thomas 

Is Vendor a local Oakland Business or has it met the requirements of the 

Local Business Policy? 181 Yes (No if Unchecked) 

How was this contractor or vendor selected? 

Consultant was selected (a) based on demonstrated competence and professional qualifications (Government Code 
§4526), and (b) using a fair, competitive RFP selection process (Government Code §§4529.10 et seq.)

Summarize the services or supplies this contractor or vendor will be providing. 

DSK Architects will provide architectural services for various upcoming projects with construction budgets under $10 
million. The District will issue Requests for Proposals (RFPs) to firms with approved master agreements through an 
informal procurement process. Firms chosen for specific projects will execute amendments to their master agreements. 

Was this contract competitively bid? □ Check box for "Yes" (If"No," leave box unchecked)

If"No," please answer the following questions: 

1) How did you determine the price is competitive?

The firm's proposed hourly billing rates for staff positions, as submitted in response to the RFQ, were found to be in
line with industry standards. Based on the District's best value criteria, considering both qualifications and fees, the
rates were deemed reasonable.

Revised 1/20/2023 
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DIVISION OF FACILITIES PLANNING AND MANAGEMENT ROUTING FORM 

Services cannot be provided until the contract is awarded by the Board or is entered by the Superintendent pursuant to 
authority delegated by the Board. 

Attachment Checklist x Proof of general liability insurance, including certificates and endorsements, if contract is over $15,000 
x Workers com ensation insurance certification, unless vendor is a sole rovider 

Owner 

Street Address 1901 Harrison Street, Suite 1320 City Oakland State CA Zip 94612 

Telephone 415-839-6418; Cell: 415-244-6953 Policy Expires 

Contractor History Previously been an OUSD contractor? cgJ Yes □ No Worked as an OUSD employee? □ Yes cgi No 

OUSD Project # 25040 

Date Work Will Begin (i.e., 
effective date of contract) 

If New Contract, Total 
Contract Price (Lump Sum) 

Pay Rate Per Hour (If Hourly) 

Other Expenses 

Term of Original/ Amended Contract 

Date Work Will End By (not more than 5 years from start 
06-26-2025 date; for construction contracts, enter planned completion date) 

$ 

New Date of Contract End (If Any) 

Compensation/Revised Compensation 

If New Contract, Total Contract Price (Not To 
Exceed) 

If Amendment, Change in Price 

Requisition Number 

6215 

Approval and Routing (in order of approval steps) 

06-30-2028

$0.00 
$ 

$0.00 

Services cannot be provided before the contract is fully approved and a Purchase Order is issued. Signing this document affirms that to your 
knowledge services were not provided before a PO was issued. 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

Division Head Phone 

Executive Director of Facilities 

Signature 

General Couns,91._ Department of Facilities Planning and Management 

Signature l I A IAA /1 A /' 1-4.bM., 
--;r 

• ,, "1f.L 
Chief.Sy, -, _,, ices Officer 

V -r1 -Sig� 
" -Th�--- /�A-• 'l".2 'ln'lc:: 17°'1".2 Df"\T\ - ,. -J 

Chief Financial Officer 

Signature 

President, Board of Education 

Signature 

- . - I 

I 510-535-7038

Date Approved 

Date Approved 

Date Approved 

Date Approved 

Date Approved 

{SR359921}A999069.P001 Rev. 5/21/2025 THIS FORM IS NOT A CONTRACT 

I Fax I 510-535-7082

I 

I 05/22/20258 


